
 
AGENDA 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 20, 2016 
222 GRAND VALLEY WAY, PARACHUTE, CO 

6:30 P.M. 
The Town of Parachute will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and will make 
special communication arrangements for persons with disabilities. Please call (970) 285-7630, x-104 for assistance. 
   

 
(A) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 
(B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
(C) APPROVE AGENDA 
 
 
(D) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 (1) MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 15, REGULAR MEETING 

(2) EXPENDITURES PAID FROM SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 – OCTOBER 12, 2016 
 

 
(E) COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS REGARDING ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  

The Board of Trustees welcomes you and thanks you for your time and concerns. 
If you wish to address the Board of Trustees, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so. When you are recognized, 

please step to the podium, state your name and address then address the Board. Your comments will be limited to three 
(3) minutes. The Board may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and 

suggestions under advisement and provide direction to the appropriate member of Town Staff for follow-up. Thank you. 
 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELL PHONES, PAGERS, AND HAND HELD DEVICES. THANK YOU. 
PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING IS BEING AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDED.  

  
 
(F) DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS: 

(1) Mayor and Board of Trustees ......................................................................................... Mayor and Trustees 
(2) Town Manager Monthly Update ................................................................ Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
(3) Community Development Report ............................ Derek Wingfield, Community Development Specialist 
(4) Public Works Department Monthly Update ............................................. Mark King, Public Works Director 
(5) Police Department Monthly Update ................................................................ Cary Parmenter, Police Chief 

 
 
(G) TERRA ENERGY PARTNERS PRESENTATION 
   

PRESENTER: MICHAEL LAND, CEO 
 
 
(H) GRAND VALLEY PARKS ASSOCIATION PRESENTATION REGARDING THE SPECIAL EVENT 

CENTER. 
 

PRESENTER: PHILLIP VAUGHN, CONSULTANT 
 
 
(I) PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE’S 

2016-10-19 Page 1 of 181



2017 RECOMMENDED BUDGET  
 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 
 
(J) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 
OPPOSING THE BALLOT QUESTION TO PROHIBIT THE OPERATION OF RETAIL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS AND STRONGLY ENCOURAGING THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “NO.”  
 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(K) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, IN 
SUPPORT OF THE MARIJUANA EXCISE TAX BALLOT QUESTION AND STRONGLY 
ENCOURAGING THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “YES.” 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(L) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-26 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, IN 
SUPPORT OF THE CHARTER AMENDMENT BALLOT QUESTION AND STRONGLY 
ENCOURAGING THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “YES.”  
 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(M) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IN 

CONSIDERATION OF A RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL LICENSE FOR A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA STORE. 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER:  Parachute Green Joint, LLC 
 DBA:  The Green Joint 
 

PROJECT NAME: Renewal application for a license from the Town of 
Parachute for a retail marijuana store. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 315 East First Street Suite A 
  Parachute, CO  81635 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Assessor Parcel No: 240912100029 
  Section: 12 Township: 7 Range: 96 Subdivision: PARK 

ADD Block: 32 Lot: 1 THRU - Lot: 7, Subdivision: 
PARK ADD Lot: 0 S. 66.8' OF EXCEPT PT. I-70 ROW  

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
 
(N) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IN 

CONSIDERATION OF A RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL LICENSE FOR A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA STORE. 

 

2016-10-19 Page 2 of 181



APPLICANT/OWNER:  Buds, LTD 
 

PROJECT NAME: Renewal application for a license from the Town of 
Parachute for a retail marijuana store. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 104 Cardinal Way 
      Parachute, CO  81635 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Assessor Parcel No: 240912400013 
Section: 12 Township: 7 Range: 96 A TR IN THE SE  
 

STAFF:  STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
 
(O) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IN 

CONSIDERATION OF A RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL LICENSE FOR A RETAIL 
MARIJUANA STORE. 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER:  Cannabist Castle Supermarket & Dispensary Lounge 
DBA:  The Kind Castle 

 

PROJECT NAME: Renewal application for a license from the Town of 
Parachute for a retail marijuana store. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 248 East First Street 
Parachute, CO  81635 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Assessor Parcel No: 240912113007 
Section: 12 Township: 7 Range: 96 Subdivision: 
ORIGINAL TWNSTE PARACHUTE Block: 6 Lot: 10 
THRU - Lot: 12 

  

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
 
(P)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 708-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE 
PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING MARIJUANA LICENSE RENEWAL. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(Q) BOARD CONDIERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 709-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING SECTION 11.06.080 OF 
THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING UNLAWFUL LOITERING.  
 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(R) BOARD CONDIERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 710-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE 
PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING MEASUREMENT OF DISTANCES BETWEEN RETAIL 
AND MEDICAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS 
 

2016-10-19 Page 3 of 181



STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  

 
 
(S) EXECUTIVE SESSION ACCORDING TO C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(E), FOR DETERMINING POSITIONS 

RELATIVE TO MATTERS THAT MAY BE SUBJECT TO NEGOTIATIONS; DEVELOPING 
STRATEGY FOR NEGOTIATIONS; INSTRUCTING NEGOTIATORS; SPECIFICALLY, SALE OF 
TOWN PROPERTY. 

 
 
(T) MOTION TO ADJOURN 

2016-10-19 Page 4 of 181



 
MINUTES 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2016 
6:30 P.M. 

   
 

(Meeting called to order by Mayor Roy B McClung 6:30 pm) 
 

(A) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

TRUSTEES PRESENT: John Loschke 
Fred Andersen 
Tim Olk 

Juanita Williams 
Travis Sproles 

 

MAYOR: Roy McClung 
  

STAFF PRESENT:   Town Manager, Stuart McArthur 
     Town Clerk, Lucy Cordova  
 Public Works Director, Mark King 

 
TRUSTEES ABSENT: Tom Rugaard  

  

AUDINCE LIST ATTACHED  
 
 
(B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
(C) APPROVE AGENDA 

MOTION 1: Moved and seconded Loschke / Olk to approve Agenda with no changes. 
Vocal vote unanimous 

 
 
(D) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 (1) MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 18, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 
 

(2) EXPENDITURES PAID FROM AUGUST 11, 2016, TO SEPTEMBER 7, 2016. 
 

(3)  LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL LIQUOR STORE LICENSE. 
APPLICANT:  Bottlecap Liquors, LLC. 
DBA:   Bottlecap Liquors 
LOCATION:  150 Columbine Ct, Suite A 
  Parachute, CO 81635 

 

(4) LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A RETAIL 3.2 BEER OFF-PREMISES LICENSE. 
APPLICANT:  Rocky Mountain C Stores Inc 
DBA:   Rocky MTN C Stores 
LOCATION:  201 Columbine Ct 
  Parachute, CO 81635 
 

MOTION 2: Moved and seconded Loschke / Olk to approve Consent Agenda  
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote 
 

 

2016-10-19 Page 5 of 181



(E) COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS REGARDING ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
 

Judith Hayward 182 S 2nd Ct., Parachute CO 
Dave Devanney 28 S Snowberry Pl., Parachute CO 
Both Dave and Judith gave information on Community Park, and asked to be part of the agenda the next month. 
 

Liz Stenson, 327 E 3rd Rifle, CO 
Liz asked if 177 S 2nd Ct in Parachute was inside the Town Limits. 

  
 
(F) DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS: 

(1) Mayor and Board of Trustees ......................................................................................... Mayor and Trustees 
Mayor McClung encouraged everyone to catch a football on the High Schools new turf field, and asked if the Board 
was willing to entertain the idea of letting high school students paint a mural on the pedestrian bridge.  
Trustee Loschke  stated that he was fed up with some properties in Town looking like trash. He directed the question 
of what could we do to our Code to make it more stringent. He stated that we need to do something to clean up 
these properties. 
Mayor McClung asked Town attorney Conklin if he could bring something in writing as to what we could do about 
our code. 
Mayor Pro-Tem Williams stated that the neighborhood BBQ was cancelled and inquired as to whether we could 
lower speed limits in alleys in town. 
Trustee Olk stated that the CML Meeting in Rifle was very informative in regards to the County’s severance tax 
issues. 
(2) Town Manager Monthly Update ................................................................ Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
Town Manager McArthur went over his monthly report. He spoke to Board regarding grants and the possibility of 
adding vending machines and a Red Box to the rest are in Town. The Board advised Mr. McArthur that there should 
not be any products sold at the rest area that would compete with the local businesses in close proximity to the rest 
area. The Board also advised that a Red Box would be permissible. Town Manager McArthur asked for direction 
from the Board on how they would like the updates from Plan Tools in regards to the updating of the Land Use 
regulations. The Board advised Mr. McArthur that in an effort to save time and money, he should meet with Mr. 
Landers from Plan Tools and then relay the update to the Board. Town Manager McArthur also informed the Board 
there might not be a P&Z meeting in December, and that there would be a Special Meeting for the Board of Trustees 
on December 8th.  
(3) Community Development Report .............................................................. Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 
Town Manager McArthur went over the Community Development Report and spoke about the Town’s upcoming 
Oktoberfest event.  
(4) Public Works Department Monthly Update ............................................. Mark King, Public Works Director 
Public Works Director King went over his monthly report. He advised the Board that the two seasonal workers had 
been a great help this year in keeping the parks clean, that they will continue stripping, that are finishing up the 
window for the Police Records Clerk office to face the inside of the building, and are laying 500 ft of pipe to replace 
pipes from the 50’s that have broken. 
(5) Police Department Monthly Update ................................................................ Cary Parmenter, Police Chief 
Town Manager McArthur went over Chief Parmenter’s monthly report. Advised the Board that there were more 
complex cases happening in Town vs traffic citations.  
(6)  Town Attorney Update ................................................................................ Jeffrey Conklin, Town Attorney 
Town attorney Conklin gave an update on upcoming changes that will affect municipal courts.  

 
 
(G) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF MG LIQUORS, LLC LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION TO ADD A 

RETAIL WAREHOUSE STORAGE PERMIT AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 
 

APPLICANT:  Maribel Garcia / MG Liquors, LLC  
APPLYING AS: MG Liquors 
DBA: MG Liquors 
LOCATION:  393 E 2nd Street  

2016-10-19 Page 6 of 181



Parachute, CO. 81635 
   

STAFF: LUCY CORDOVA, TOWN CLERK 
 

APPLICANT MARIBEL GARCIA PRESENT. 
BOARD DISCUSSION ENSUED. 

 

MOTION 3: Moved and seconded Loschke / Sproles to approve application for a retail warehouse storage permit 
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote 

 
 
(H)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF RETAIL 

LIQUOR STORE AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN.  
 

APPLICANT:  Tumbleweed Liquors, LLC  
APPLYING AS: Tumbleweed Liquors, LLC / Transferring from Bottlecap Liquors   
DBA:   Tumbleweed Liquors 
LOCATION:  150 Columbine Ct, Suite A 

Parachute, CO. 81635 
   

STAFF: LUCY CORDOVA, TOWN CLERK 
 

APPLICANT UNABLE TO ATTEND 
TOWN CLERK CORDOVA ANSWERED BOARDS QUESTIONS BASED ON APPLICATION 
BOARD DISCUSSION ENSUED 
 

MOTION 4: Moved and seconded Olk / Andersen to approve application for transfer of Bottlecap Liquors to 
Tumbleweed Liquors 
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote 

 
 
(I) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO CONSIDER A DEVELOPMENT 

REVIEW APPLICATION FROM ROCKY MOUNTAIN LASER TAG, INC FOR A SPECIAL USE 
REVIEW TO CONSTRUCT AN OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITY ON A SERVICE COMMERCIAL 
ZONED PROPERTY. 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Rocky Mountain Laser Tag, Inc 
225 Callahan Ave 
Parachute, CO 81635  
  

PROJECT NAME: Public hearing for a Special Use Review to construct an outdoor 
recreation facility on a Service Commercial zoned property.  

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 68 Cardinal Way 
 Parachute, CO 81635 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): Section: 12 
Township: 7 
Range: 96 
Lot: 3 A resub of Lot 2A, Sec E 
County of Garfield 

 

STAFF:   MARK CHAIN, TOWN PLANNER  
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 7:45 PM 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION AND BOARD DISCUSSION ENSUED.  
MAYOR MCCLUNG STATED A FENCE OF MINIMUM 7FT TALL SHALL ENCLOSE ALL FOUR SIDES OF RECREATION 
FACILITY. 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 8:00 PM 

 

2016-10-19 Page 7 of 181



(J)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE PERMIT FOR BRUCE HOGGAN TO 
OPERATE AN OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITY 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
 

MOTION 5: Moved and seconded by Sproles / Loschke to approve permit to operate an outdoor recreation facility. 
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Special Review Use Permit shall be approved for a period of up to two years. At the end of that time 
period, there shall be a Public Meeting at which time the operations of the Hoggan Lasertag and Archery 
Recreation Facility will be reviewed. The Board of Trustees, in their discretion may approve a continuation 
of the operation of the Facility “as is”, may recommend certain changes in the operational schedule or 
nature of the physical facility itself, or require that a structure or enclosed arena be constructed to house 
the Facility. The Board of Trustees may require at that time that the Facility also be hooked up to Town 
utilities and that parking and other improvements such as additional landscaping be constructed on site. 

 

2. The Town Manager or his designee shall review the operation of the Facility at the end of one year from the 
opening of the Facility. At that time, any issues related to complaints from the public, suggestions from Town 
Staff, Department Heads or any Special District may be considered in order to enhance the operation of the 
Facility and allow it to function at an appropriate level as part of the Central Business District. 

 

3. A seven (7) ft. high screened fence that meets Parachute Municipal Code standards shall enclose the 
property. Frontage landscaping shall be installed. 

 

4. As required by the Parachute Municipal Code, the applicant shall submit a detailed site plan subject to 
review and conformance with Sections 15.07.112 and 15.06.104 of the Municipal Code. Special 
consideration shall be focused on trash storage area and portable sanitation facilities areas. Relationship 
to the Shared Parking Facility with H Dentistry and signage/outdoor lighting (if proposed) shall also be 
considered. 

 

5. The Applicant shall enter into a Development Improvements Agreement with the Town as per Section 
15.03.165 D of the Parachute Municipal Code. The Development Agreement may include provisions for 
timely review and operation of the Facility per the approved Special Review Use permit including hours of 
operation, issues related to an outdoor recreational use without permanent Municipal Water and Wastewater 
Facilities, and use of the Shared Parking on an adjacent lot. 

 

6. All use of the site shall conform to with adopted fire codes applicable to the Town of Parachute and 
recommendations on emergency access and other appropriate safety measures as suggested by the Grand Valley 
Fire Protection District and the Town of Parachute Police Department. 

 

7. The Record of Decision by the Parachute Board of Trustees for the Hogan Special Review Use shall be recorded 
in the real state records of the Garfield County Clerk and Recorder. 

 

8. All representations made in the applicant’s written material or verbally as reflected in the minutes of the public 
meetings or hearings where the Application was presented to the Commission and/or Board of Trustees are 
considered part of the application and binding on the applicant. 

 

9. Applicant shall reimburse the town for any and all fees, including consulting costs, incurred in the review of the 
Application. 

 
 
(K) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22 
 

 RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE 

2016-10-19 Page 8 of 181



COLORADO HEALTH FOUNDATION COTTONWOOD PARK CHILDREN’S PLAYGOUND 
PROJECT. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
 

MOTION 6: Moved and seconded by Sproles / Loschke to approve Resolution No. 2016-22 
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE COLORADO HEALTH 
FOUNDATION COTTONWOOD PARK CHILDREN’S PLAYGOUND PROJECT 

 
 
(L)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A CAPITAL LEASING CORPORATION. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
 

MOTION 7: Moved and seconded by Loschke / Olk to approve Resolution No. 2016-23 
Motion passed unanimously with a 5-0 vote 

 
 
(M) PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING THE 2017 RECOMMENDED 

BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE. 
 

  STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
 

TOWN MANAGER MCARTHUR GAVE HIS PRESENTATION. 
      
 
(O) MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 

 MOTION 8: Moved by Olk to adjourn  
Vocal vote unanimous 
Meeting adjourned at 8:43 PM 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                          ______________________________________________________ 

Roy B. McClung, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST:  
 
 

 
 
 

______________________________________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk 
 

2016-10-19 Page 9 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 10 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 11 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 12 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 13 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 14 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 15 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 16 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 17 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 18 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 19 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 20 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 21 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 22 of 181



  Mark King 
 Public Works Director 

 
 

Integrity   ▪   Respect   ▪   Teamwork   ▪   Pride   ▪   Innovation   ▪   Diversity 

222 GRAND VALLEY WAY ▪ PARACHUTE, CO 81635 ▪ (970) 285-7630 
 

 
 
 
Date:   October 19th, 2016 
To:    Board of Trustees 
From:    Mark King, Public Works Director 
Subject:  September Monthly Report 
 

 
The purpose of this memo is to provide the Board of Trustees with Public Works updates for the 
past month. 
 
The Public Works crew spent the better part of 2 weeks in preparation for Oktoberfest. 
 
We prepped and painted the Town shop this month.  A little paint sure improved the looks over 
there. 
 
The sweeper has been out on the streets recently.  We plan on sweeping once a week from 
now until all the leaves fall or snow falls.  
 
We will start draining the irrigation system on October 17th.  If you have any issues or know 
anyone that has issues with the irrigation system, have them contact Town Hall to schedule 
repairs before the following season. 
  
The Police Department Records window is complete.  Construction for the court room door has 
started and will be completed before the next board meeting pending any unforeseen 
problems and/or interruptions.  
 
 
 
If you have any questions or concerns you can contact me at 970-986-1821. 
 
 

2016-10-19 Page 23 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 24 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 25 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 26 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 27 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 28 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 29 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 30 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 31 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 32 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 33 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 34 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 35 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 36 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 37 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 38 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 39 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 40 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 41 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 42 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 43 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 44 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 45 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 46 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 47 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 48 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 49 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 50 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 51 of 181



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-24 
 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO OPPOSING THE BALLOT QUESTION TO PROHIBIT THE OPERATION 
OF RETAIL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS AND STRONGLY ENCOURAGING 
THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “NO.”  

 
WHEREAS, in 2015, a Petitioners Committee was formed and the Committee submitted 

to the Town Clerk a Citizens’ Initiated Petition to prohibit retail marijuana establishments in the 
Town of Parachute (the “Town”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Initiated Ordinance was placed on the agenda for the Board of Trustees 

regular meeting on September 17, 2015, at which, the Board of Trustees voted not to adopt the 
Initiated Ordinance and for the Initiated Ordinance to be placed on the ballot of the November 
2016 general election, as prescribed by paragraph (5)(F) of Section 16 of Article XVIII of the 
Colorado Constitution;  

 
WHERAS, as a result, the following ballot question will appear on the November 2016 

election ballot: 
 
“Shall the Town of Parachute prohibit the licensing and operation of retail marijuana 
cultivation facilities, retail marijuana product manufacturing facilities, retail marijuana 
testing facilities, and retail marijuana stores?” 

 
  Yes _______ 
 
  No _______” 
 
 (the “Marijuana Prohibition Ballot Question”).   

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1-45-117(1)(b)(III) of the Fair Campaign Practices Act 

(C.R.S. § 1-45-101, et seq.), the Board of Trustees wishes to formally take a position with respect 
to the Marijuana Prohibition Ballot Question;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees believes that retail marijuana establishments have 

aided in stabilizing the Town’s economy, provided needed tax revenue, created jobs, and spurred 
other economic activity and, as a result, prohibiting retail marijuana establishments would be 
devastating to the Town’s economy; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees believes it is in the best interests of the Town for the  

2016-10-19 Page 52 of 181



Board of Trustees to oppose the Initiated Ordinance and encourage the Town’s registered 
electorate to vote “NO” on the Marijuana Prohibition Ballot Question;   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 
 Section 2. The Board of Trustees opposes the passage of the Marijuana Prohibition 
Ballot Question that will appear on the November 8, 2016 coordinated election ballot and strongly 
encourages the electors of the Town of Parachute to vote NO in opposition of the Marijuana 
Prohibition Ballot Question. 

  
Section 3. Adoption of this resolution may be reported or distributed only through 

established, customary means by which information about other proceedings of the Board of 
Trustees is regularly provided to the public; however, paid advertising may not be used.   
 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by a vote of ___ to ___ of 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a special meeting held at the Town 
Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado on the ___ day of ________________, 2016 and 
approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk  

2016-10-19 Page 53 of 181



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-25 
 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO IN SUPPORT OF THE MARIJUANA EXCISE TAX BALLOT QUESTION 
AND STRONGLY ENCOURAGING THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “YES.”  

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2015-687, the Board of Trustees adopted a 5% excise tax 

on the cultivation of retail marijuana, which was approved by voters in November 2015;  
 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2016-701, to offset costs and meet the current and future 

financial and planning needs of the Town, the Board of Trustees adopted a five percent (5%) excise 
tax on the cultivation of unprocessed medical marijuana when it is first sold or transferred by a 
medical marijuana cultivation facility and manufacturing of retail and medical marijuana when it 
is first sold or transferred from such manufacturing facility (the “Marijuana Excise Tax Ballot 
Question”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Marijuana Excise Tax Ballot Question will appear on the November 2016 

coordinated election ballot;  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1-45-117(1)(b)(III) of the Fair Campaign Practices Act 

(C.R.S. § 1-45-101, et seq.), the Board of Trustees wishes to formally take a position with respect 
to this ballot question;  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed excise tax will produce needed revenues to the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees believes it is in the best interests of the Town for the  

Board of Trustees to support the Marijuana Excise Tax Ballot Question and encourage the Town’s 
registered electorate to vote “YES.”   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 
 Section 2. The Board of Trustees strongly supports the passage of the Marijuana 
Excise Tax Ballot Question that will appear on the November 8, 2016 coordinated election ballot 
and strongly encourages the electors of the Town of Parachute to vote YES in support of the 
Marijuana Excise Tax Ballot Question. 

  
Section 3. Adoption of this resolution may be reported or distributed only through 

established, customary means by which information about other proceedings of the Board of 
Trustees is regularly provided to the public; however, paid advertising may not be used.   

2016-10-19 Page 54 of 181



 
 
 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by a vote of ___ to ___ of 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a special meeting held at the Town 
Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado on the ___ day of ________________, 2016 and 
approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk  

2016-10-19 Page 55 of 181



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-26 
 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO IN SUPPORT OF THE CHARTER AMENDMENT BALLOT QUESTION 
AND STRONGLY ENCOURAGING THE ELECTORATE TO VOTE “YES.”  

 
WHEREAS, under Section 2-8 of the Town Charter, terms of the Board of Trustees in 

office are considered consecutive unless they are at least four years apart;  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to amend the Charter to decrease the time from 

four years to two years for terms in office to be considered consecutive (the “Charter Amendment”) 
and, by Ordinance No. 2016-706, approved such question to be placed on the regular election to 
be held on November 8, 2016; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1-45-117(1)(b)(III) of the Fair Campaign Practices Act 

(C.R.S. § 1-45-101, et seq.), the Board of Trustees wishes to formally take a position with respect 
to this ballot question; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees believes it is in the best interests of the Town for the  

Board of Trustees to support the Charter Amendment and encourage the Town’s registered 
electorate to vote “YES” on such ballot question.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 
 Section 2. The Board of Trustees supports the passage of the Charter Amendment 
Ballot Question that will appear on the November 8, 2016 coordinated election ballot and strongly 
encourages the electors of the Town of Parachute to vote YES in support of the Charter 
Amendment Ballot Question. 

  
Section 3. Adoption of this resolution may be reported or distributed only through 

established, customary means by which information about other proceedings of the Board of 
Trustees is regularly provided to the public; however, paid advertising may not be used.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-10-19 Page 56 of 181



 
INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by a vote of ___ to ___ of 

the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a special meeting held at the Town 
Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado on the ___ day of ________________, 2016 and 
approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk  

2016-10-19 Page 57 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 58 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 59 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 60 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 61 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 62 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 63 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 64 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 65 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 66 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 67 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 68 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 69 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 70 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 71 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 72 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 73 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 74 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 75 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 76 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 77 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 78 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 79 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 80 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 81 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 82 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 83 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 84 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 85 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 86 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 87 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 88 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 89 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 90 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 91 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 92 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 93 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 94 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 95 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 96 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 97 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 98 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 99 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 100 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 101 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 102 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 103 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 104 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 105 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 106 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 107 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 108 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 109 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 110 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 111 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 112 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 113 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 114 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 115 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 116 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 117 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 118 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 119 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 120 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 121 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 122 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 123 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 124 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 125 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 126 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 127 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 128 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 129 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 130 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 131 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 132 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 133 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 134 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 135 of 181



 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

GLENWOOD SPRINGS POST INDEPENDENT

STATE OF COLORADO }

 SS.

COUNTY OF GARFIELD }

I, Michael Bennett, do solemnly swear that I am Publisher of the 

Glenwood Springs Post Independent. That the same Daily newspaper 

printed, in whole or in part and published in the County of Garfield, 

State of Colorado, and has a general circulation therein; that said 

newspaper has been published continuously and uninterruptedly 

in said County of Garfield for a period of more than fifty-two 

consecutive weeks next prior to the first publication of the annexed 

legal notice or advertisement and that said newspaper has published 

the requested legal notice and advertisement as requested.

The Glenwood Springs Post Independent is an accepted legal 

advertising medium, only for jurisdictions operating under 

Colorado’s Home Rule provision.

That the annexed legal notice or advertisement was published in the 

regular and entire issue of every number of said daily newspaper for 

the period of  1  consecutive insertions; and that the first publication 

of said notice was in the issue of said newspaper dated 10/1/2016  

and that the last publication of said notice was in the issue of said 

newspaper dated 10/1/2016.

In witness whereof has here unto set my hand this 10/19/2016.

_______________________________

Michael Bennett, Publisher 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a notary public in and for the 

County of Garfield, State of Colorado this 10/19/2016. 

_______________________________

Pamela J. Schultz, Notary Public

My Commission expires: November 1, 2019

2016-10-19 Page 136 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 137 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 138 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 139 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 140 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 141 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 142 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 143 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 144 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 145 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 146 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 147 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 148 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 149 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 150 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 151 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 152 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 153 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 154 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 155 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 156 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 157 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 158 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 159 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 160 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 161 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 162 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 163 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 164 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 165 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 166 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 167 of 181



 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

GLENWOOD SPRINGS POST INDEPENDENT

STATE OF COLORADO }

 SS.

COUNTY OF GARFIELD }

I, Michael Bennett, do solemnly swear that I am Publisher of the 

Glenwood Springs Post Independent. That the same Daily newspaper 

printed, in whole or in part and published in the County of Garfield, 

State of Colorado, and has a general circulation therein; that said 

newspaper has been published continuously and uninterruptedly 

in said County of Garfield for a period of more than fifty-two 

consecutive weeks next prior to the first publication of the annexed 

legal notice or advertisement and that said newspaper has published 

the requested legal notice and advertisement as requested.

The Glenwood Springs Post Independent is an accepted legal 

advertising medium, only for jurisdictions operating under 

Colorado’s Home Rule provision.

That the annexed legal notice or advertisement was published in the 

regular and entire issue of every number of said daily newspaper for 

the period of  1  consecutive insertions; and that the first publication 

of said notice was in the issue of said newspaper dated 10/5/2016  

and that the last publication of said notice was in the issue of said 

newspaper dated 10/6/2016.

In witness whereof has here unto set my hand this 10/19/2016.

_______________________________

Michael Bennett, Publisher 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a notary public in and for the 

County of Garfield, State of Colorado this 10/19/2016. 

_______________________________

Pamela J. Schultz, Notary Public

My Commission expires: November 1, 2019

2016-10-19 Page 168 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 169 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 170 of 181



2016-10-19 Page 171 of 181



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
ORDINANCE NO. 708-2016 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
MARIJUANA LICENSE RENEWAL. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 
organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and under the Parachute Home 
Rule Charter;  
 

WHEREAS, Title 12, Articles 43.3 and 43.4, C.R.S., authorize the Town to provide for 
the local licensing and regulation of medical and retail marijuana businesses within the Town; 

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 683-2015, as amended, the Parachute Board of Trustees 

adopted Chapter 6.11 of the Parachute Town Code to provide for local control of marijuana 
businesses, including the licensing, regulation, and renewal thereof; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Board desires to amend Chapter 6.11, regarding the marijuana 

business license renewal process. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 
 
Section 2. Section 6.11.160 is hereby amended to read as follows, with bold, 

underlined text added and strike through language deleted.  
 

6.11.160 Renewal of license. 

A. At any time from sixty (60) to thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current license, a 
licensee may make application for license renewal for the succeeding year and pay the required 
fees. Unless otherwise provided by this chapter, if a renewal application is made and no punitive 
action has been taken or is pending against the licensee, such license may continue as valid until 
the renewal application is reviewed by the authority. 

All applications for renewal of medical marijuana licenses and retail marijuana licenses shall 
be on forms provided by the state licensing authority and the local licensing authority, and 
must be submitted to the Town Clerk not less than thirty (30) days prior to the license 
expiration date, together with the required renewal application fee, as established by the 
Town. 

2016-10-19 Page 172 of 181



B. The Town Manager or its designee shall send the license renewal application to all applicable 
Town departments and other referral agencies for review and comment.  

Upon receiving the renewal application, the Town Clerk shall assemble the applicant’s file 
containing reports from staff regarding the applicant or the premises for the preceding year. 
Unless there is evidence to the contrary in the applicant’s file or otherwise, it will be 
presumed that the licensed premises are in compliance with the provisions of state statutes 
and Town regulations, and that the applicant continues to be qualified under the provisions 
of this Chapter. If these presumptions apply, the application for renewal shall be 
recommended for approval by the Town Clerk and set for local licensing authority consent 
at the next Town Board meeting. All successful applicants shall be subject to license fees as 
referenced in PMC 6.12.090 or otherwise established. 

C. The license renewal application shall be brought before the authority for consideration at a 
public hearing.  

If there is evidence to rebut the presumptions in subsection (B) of this section which 
otherwise arise, the Town Clerk shall immediately notify the licensee in writing of the 
objections to the renewal application and set a public hearing.  The written notice shall be 
mailed by certified mail to the applicant, shall state generally the grounds for staff’s 
recommendation of nonrenewal, and shall provide the date, time and place of the hearing to 
show cause for nonrenewal. Notice of the hearing must also be conspicuously posted on the 
premises for a period of ten (10) days prior to the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted 
in the same manner as provided for hearings on revocation or suspension of the type of 
license involved.  

D. The authority may renew the license upon a finding that there have not been any suspensions 
of the license or violations of this chapter, the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code, the Colorado 
Retail Marijuana Code, the Medical Marijuana Regulations, or the Retail Marijuana Regulations, 
as applicable, by the licensee within the preceding one (1) year period. Should a violation have 
been found to exist, the authority may deny the renewal or may renew the license with 
conditions. 

Licenses may continue as valid until the renewal application is reviewed by the authority. 

 

Section 3. Section 6.11.140 is hereby amended to read as follows, with bold, 
underlined text added and strike through language deleted.  

 
6.11.140 Expiration of license.  
 
Each license shall expire one (1) year from the date of issuance and may be renewed only by 
making application as provided in PMC 6.11.160090.  

 

2016-10-19 Page 173 of 181

http://www.codepublishing.com/CO/Parachute/#!/6.12.html#6.12.170


Section 4. If any provision of this Ordinance is found to be unconstitutional or 
unlawful, such finding shall only invalidate that part of portion found to violate the law.  All other 
provisions shall be deemed severable and shall continue in full force and effect. 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 
TITLE ONLY by a vote of  _  to     of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado 
at a regular meeting held at Town Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the ____ day of 
____________________, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of 
____________________, 2016. 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 
OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
By: ____________________________________ 

Roy McClung, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk 
  

2016-10-19 Page 174 of 181



 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notice is hereby given that an Ordinance entitled: 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO AMENDING 
CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
MARIJUANA LICENSE RENEWAL. 
 
was introduced before the Board of Trustees on _____________________ ______, 2016; that a 
copy of said Ordinance is posted at Town Hall; and that the Ordinance was approved at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Trustees held on ______________________ ______, 2016, and approved 
by the Mayor on _____________________ ______, 2016.   
 
Copies of the adopted ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Hall, Parachute, Colorado 
and available on the internet at http://www.parachutecolorado.com.   
 

Dated this _____ day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
 
__________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

 

2016-10-19 Page 175 of 181



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
ORDINANCE NO. 709-2016 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 
SECTION 11.06.080 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
UNLAWFUL LOITERING.  
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 
organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and under the Parachute Home 
Rule Charter;  
 

WHEREAS, recent legal precedent, including that established by the United States District 
Court for the District of Colorado in Browne v. City of Grand Junction, now draws into question 
the validity of the Town’s anti-loitering for the purpose of begging ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees for the Town of Parachute, Colorado desires to 
amend Section 11.06.080 of the Town Code to align with the most recent legal precedent now 
available. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 
 
Section 2. Section 11.06.080 of the Town Code is hereby amended as follows, with 

bold, underlined text added and strike through language deleted.  
 

11.06.080 Loitering. 

A. The word “loiter” means to be dilatory, to stand idly around, to linger, delay, or wander about, 
or to remain, abide, or tarry in a public place. 

B. A person commits a Class B municipal offense if he knowingly: 

1. Loiters for the purpose of begging; or 

21. Loiters for the purpose of unlawful gambling with cards, dice, or other gambling 
paraphernalia; or 

32. Loiters for the purpose of engaging or soliciting another person to engage in 
prostitution or deviate sexual intercourse; or 

43. Loiters with intent to interfere with or disrupt the school program or with intent to 
interfere with or endanger school children, in a school building or on school grounds or 

2016-10-19 Page 176 of 181



within one hundred feet (100') of school grounds when persons under the age of eighteen 
(18) are present in the building or on the grounds, not having any reason or relationship 
involving custody of, or responsibility for, a pupil or other specific, legitimate reason for 
being there, and having been asked to leave by a school administrator or his representative 
or by a peace officer; or 

54. Loiters with one or more persons for the purpose of unlawfully using or possessing a 
controlled substance, as defined in § 18-18-102, C.R.S., as amended. 

C. It shall be an affirmative defense that the defendant’s acts were lawful and he was exercising 
his rights of lawful assembly as a part of peaceful and orderly petition for the redress of grievances, 
either in the course of labor disputes or otherwise. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

TITLE ONLY by a vote of ____ to ____ of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, 
Colorado at a regular meeting held at Town Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the 20th 
day of October, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of October, 2016. 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 
OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Roy McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-10-19 Page 177 of 181

http://www.codepublishing.com/CO/CRS/18-18-102


PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notice is hereby given that an Ordinance entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 
SECTION 11.06.080 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
UNLAWFUL LOITERING.  
 
was introduced before the Board of Trustees on October ___, 2016; that a copy of said Ordinance 
is posted at Town Hall; and that the Ordinance was approved at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Trustees held on October ____, 2016, and approved by the Mayor on ____________________, 
2016.   
 
Copies of the adopted ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Hall, Parachute, Colorado 
and available on the internet at http://www.parachutecolorado.com.   
 

Dated this _____ day of October, 2016. 
 
 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
 
__________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

 
 

 

2016-10-19 Page 178 of 181



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
ORDINANCE NO. 710-2016 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING 
MEASUREMENT OF DISTANCES BETWEEN RETAIL AND MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 6.11 governs the licensing of Retail Marijuana Establishments and 
Medical Marijuana Establishments;  

 
WHEREAS, the Town may enact ordinances which: govern the time, place, manner, and 

number of Retail and Medical Marijuana Establishments;  
 
WHEREAS, generally a, Retail or Medical Marijuana Establishment must be located at least 

one hundred and fifty feet (150’) from another Retail or Medical Marijuana Establishment, except as 
allowed by Section 6.11.050.B.2 of the Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees wishes to clarify and define the how the distance between 

Retail and Medical Marijuana Establishments should be measured.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

 
Section 2. Section 6.11.050 of the Parachute Municipal Code is hereby amended as 

follows, with additions shown in bold, double underlined text and strike through language deleted: 
 
6.11.050  Location limitations of medical and retail marijuana establishments. 
… 

 
B. No medical marijuana establishment or retail marijuana establishment shall be located: 

   
… 

  
3. The distances described in this section shall be measured using a route for direct 
pedestrian access, measured as a person would walk safely and properly, without 
trespassing, with right angles at crossing and with the observance of traffic 
regulations and lights, from the nearest property line of the school or other medical 
marijuana establishment or retail marijuana establishment property to the nearest 
portion of the structure of the proposed licensed premises.  

 
 
 INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 

2016-10-19 Page 179 of 181



TITLE ONLY by a vote of __  to  _  of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado 
at a regular meeting held at Town Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the ____ day of 
___________________, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of 
___________________, 2016. 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 
OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Roy McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk 
  

2016-10-19 Page 180 of 181



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notice is hereby given that an Ordinance entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 6.11 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING 
MEASUREMENT OF DISTANCES BETWEEN RETAIL AND MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS 
 
was introduced before the Board of Trustees on ________________ _____, 2016; that a copy of said 
Ordinance is posted at Town Hall; and that the Ordinance was approved at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees held on _____________________ _______, 2016, and approved by the Mayor on 
____________________ ______, 2016.   
 
Copies of the adopted ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Hall, Parachute, Colorado 
and available on the internet at http://www.parachutecolorado.com.   
 

Dated this _____ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
 
__________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

 

2016-10-19 Page 181 of 181


	2016-10-20 AGENDA
	(D)(1) 2016-09-15 MINUTES
	(D)(2) Expenditures 9-8-16 - 10-13-16
	(F)(2) Town Manager Monthly Report
	(F)(3)  Comm. Dev Monthly Report
	(F)(4) Public Works Monthly Update
	(F)(5) Police Dept Monthly Report
	(I) 2017 Budget Reccomendation
	(J)Reso No. 2016-24  Opposing Retail Marijuana Prohibition Ballot Measure
	(K)Reso No. 2016-25 - Supporting Excise Tax
	(L) Reso No. 2016-26 - Supporting Charter Amendment
	(M)The Green Joint Renewal_Redacted
	(N)Buds Renewal_Redacted
	(O) The Kind Castle Renewal_Redacted
	(P)Ord No. 708-2016 - Marijuana Business License Renewal
	6.11.160 Renewal of license.

	(Q)Ord No. 709-2016 - Loitering (003)
	11.06.080 Loitering.

	(R)Ord No. 710-2016 - Measuring Distances for Marijuana Establishments



